South Australia

Civil Liability (Institutional Child Abuse Liability) Amendment Bill 2021

A BILL FOR An Act to amend the *Civil Liability Act 1936*.

Contents

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Amendment provisions

Part 2—Amendment of Civil Liability Act 1936

4 Insertion of Parts 7A and 7B

Part 7A—Child abuse—liability of institutions

Division 1—Preliminary

50A	Interpretation
50B	Meaning of associated trust

- 50C When persons are associated with institution
- Application of Part 50D

D[.] · · . . 1.1.1.1 ~ ъ c · · • .

Division	2—Duty of institutions to prevent child abuse
50E 50F	Duty to prevent child abuse Proof of whether duty was breached
Division	3—Vicarious liability of institutions
50G	Institutions vicariously liable for abuse of child by employee
Division	4—Liability of particular institutions and office holders
50H 50I 50J 50K	Liability of incorporated institution that was unincorporated at time of abuse Liability of current office holder of unincorporated institution Claim against unincorporated institution and nomination of appropriate defendant Proceeding against nominee of unincorporated institution
Division	5—Satisfaction of liability
50L 50M 50N 50O 50P	Assets available to satisfy liability of institution Assets available to satisfy liability of nominee Assets available to satisfy liability of current office holder Satisfaction of liability by trustee of associated trust References to liability
Division	6—Miscellaneous
50Q 50R	Entities may act despite other laws and duties Continuity of institutions

- 50R 50S Continuity of offices
- 50T Corporations Act displacement
- 50U Proceedings despite previous judgment

Part 7B—Child abuse—setting aside settlements

- 50V Meaning of affected agreement
- 50W Court may set aside affected agreement
- 50X Effect of setting aside affected agreement

The Parliament of South Australia enacts as follows:

Part 1—Preliminary

1—Short title

This Act may be cited as the *Civil Liability (Institutional Child Abuse Liability)* Amendment Act 2021.

5 **2—Commencement**

This Act comes into operation on a day to be fixed by proclamation.

3—Amendment provisions

In this Act, a provision under a heading referring to the amendment of a specified Act amends the Act so specified.

10 Part 2—Amendment of *Civil Liability Act 1936*

4—Insertion of Parts 7A and 7B

After Part 7 insert:

Part 7A—Child abuse—liability of institutions

Division 1—Preliminary

15 **50A—Interpretation**

(1) In this Part—

abuse, of a child, includes any of the following:

- (a) sexual abuse of the child;
- (b) serious physical abuse of the child;
- (c) psychological abuse of the child related to sexual abuse or serious physical abuse of the child;

abuse claim means a claim arising from the abuse of a child by a person associated with an institution while the child was under the care, supervision, control or authority of the institution;

akin to an employee—see subsections (2) and (3);

associated trust, of an institution-see section 50B;

associated with, an institution—see section 50C;

child means a person under 18 years of age;

current office holder—see section 50I;

20

designated carer means a person in whose care a child is placed under the Children and Young People (Safety) Act 2017 but excludes a person who provides care at or on behalf ofa children's residential facility (within the meaning of the (a) Children and Young People (Safety) Act 2017); or 5 a residential facility established or licensed under the Family (b) and Community Services Act 1972; or any other facility that provides non-family based care to (c) children or young people; employee, of an institution, includes a person who is akin to an 10 employee of the institution; *function* includes a power, authority or duty; *head*, of an institution, means the person whois acknowledged by the institution as its head; or (a) if paragraph (a) does not apply—has overall responsibility (b) 15 for the institution; institution means an entity (whether private or public) that is (a) responsible for a child and provides an activity, program or service of a kind that gives an opportunity for a person to 20 have contact with a child; and (b) does not include a family; nominee, for an institution, means a person who is the institution's nominee because of a nomination or court order under section 50J; 25 office of authority, in an institution, includes-(a) a position as a member of a management committee of the institution; and (b) a position in which the holder is concerned with, or takes part in, the management of the institution. (2) For the purposes of the definition of *employee*, a person is *akin to an* 30 employee of an institution if the person carries out activities as an integral part of the activities carried on by the institution and does so for the benefit of the institution, but a person is not *akin to an* employee ifthe activities are carried out for a recognisably independent (a) 35 business of the person or of another person or institution; or the activities carried on by the person are the activities of a (b) designated carer carried on in the person's capacity as a designated carer. The regulations may, despite subsection (2), prescribe circumstances (3) 40 in which a person will be akin to an employee or not akin to an employee.

50B—Meaning of associated trust

 trust or the distribution of property of the trust; (ii) a power to obtain the beneficial enjoyment of the property or income of the trust, with or without consent of another entity; (iii) a power to appoint or remove a trustee or beneficiary of the trust; (iv) a power to determine the outcome of any other decision about the trust's operations; or (b) a member or manager of the institution has, under the tr deed for the trust, a power mentioned in paragraph (a); of a trustee is accustomed to acting, or is under a formal of informal obligation to act, according to the directions, instructions or wishes of the institution or a member or manager of the institution or a member or manager of the institution. (2) A reference in Division 5 or Division 6 to an associated trust of a institution includes a trust in relation to which an order is in force under section 50J(5) (in relation to any abuse claim against the institution). 50C—When persons are associated with institution (1) For the purposes of this Part, the persons associated with an institution include— (a) an officer, office holder, representative, leader, owner, employee, agent, volunteer or contractor of the institution and (b) for an institution that is a religious organisation—a min of religion, religious leader or member of the personnel the organisation; and 	(1)	instituti		s of this Part, a trust is an <i>associated trust</i> of an institution uses the trust to carry out its functions or
 trust or the distribution of property of the trust; (ii) a power to obtain the beneficial enjoyment of the property or income of the trust, with or without consent of another entity; (iii) a power to appoint or remove a trustee or beneficiary of the trust; (iv) a power to determine the outcome of any other decision about the trust's operations; or (b) a member or manager of the institution has, under the tr deed for the trust, a power mentioned in paragraph (a); of a trustee is accustomed to acting, or is under a formal of informal obligation to act, according to the directions, instructions or wishes of the institution or a member or manager of the institution or a member or manager of the institution. (2) A reference in Division 5 or Division 6 to an associated trust of a institution includes a trust in relation to which an order is in force under section 50J(5) (in relation to any abuse claim against the institution). 50C—When persons are associated with institution (1) For the purposes of this Part, the persons associated with an institution include— (a) an officer, office holder, representative, leader, owner, employee, agent, volunteer or contractor of the institution and (b) for an institution that is a religious organisation—a min of religion, religious leader or member of the personnel the organisation; and 	5	(a)		
 property or income of the trust, with or without consent of another entity; (iii) a power to appoint or remove a trustee or beneficiary of the trust; (iv) a power to determine the outcome of any other decision about the trust's operations; or (b) a member or manager of the institution has, under the tr deed for the trust, a power mentioned in paragraph (a); o (c) a trustee is accustomed to acting, or is under a formal or informal obligation to act, according to the directions, instructions or wishes of the institution or a member or manager of the institution or a member or manager of the institution. (2) A reference in Division 5 or Division 6 to an associated trust of a institution includes a trust in relation to which an order is in force under section 50J(5) (in relation to any abuse claim against the institution). 50C—When persons are associated with institution (1) For the purposes of this Part, the persons <i>associated with</i> an institution include— (a) an officer, office holder, representative, leader, owner, employee, agent, volunteer or contractor of the institution and (b) for an institution that is a religious organisation—a min of religion, religious leader or member of the personnel the organisation; and 			(i)	a power to control the application of income of the trust or the distribution of property of the trust;
 beneficiary of the trust; (iv) a power to determine the outcome of any other decision about the trust's operations; or (b) a member or manager of the institution has, under the tr deed for the trust, a power mentioned in paragraph (a); of (c) a trustee is accustomed to acting, or is under a formal or informal obligation to act, according to the directions, instructions or wishes of the institution or a member or manager of the institution. (2) A reference in Division 5 or Division 6 to an associated trust of a institution includes a trust in relation to which an order is in force under section 50J(5) (in relation to any abuse claim against the institution). 50C—When persons are associated with institution (1) For the purposes of this Part, the persons <i>associated with</i> an institution include—	10		(ii)	a power to obtain the beneficial enjoyment of the property or income of the trust, with or without the consent of another entity;
 15 decision about the trust's operations; or (b) a member or manager of the institution has, under the tr deed for the trust, a power mentioned in paragraph (a); of (c) a trustee is accustomed to acting, or is under a formal or informal obligation to act, according to the directions, instructions or wishes of the institution or a member or manager of the institution. (2) A reference in Division 5 or Division 6 to an associated trust of institution includes a trust in relation to which an order is in force under section 50J(5) (in relation to any abuse claim against the institution). 50C—When persons are associated with institution (1) For the purposes of this Part, the persons associated with an institution include— (a) an officer, office holder, representative, leader, owner, employee, agent, volunteer or contractor of the institution and (b) for an institution that is a religious organisation—a min of religion, religious leader or member of the personnel the organisation; and 35 (c) if the institution has delegated the care, supervision, cor 			(iii)	
deed for the trust, a power mentioned in paragraph (a); d (c) a trustee is accustomed to acting, or is under a formal on informal obligation to act, according to the directions, instructions or wishes of the institution or a member or manager of the institution. 20 (2) (2) A reference in Division 5 or Division 6 to an associated trust of a institution includes a trust in relation to which an order is in force under section 50J(5) (in relation to any abuse claim against the institution). 25 50C —When persons are associated with institution (1) For the purposes of this Part, the persons associated with an institution include— (a) an officer, office holder, representative, leader, owner, employee, agent, volunteer or contractor of the institution and (b) for an institution that is a religious organisation—a min of religion, religious leader or member of the personnel the organisation; and (c) if the institution has delegated the care, supervision, cor 	15		(iv)	
 informal obligation to act, according to the directions, instructions or wishes of the institution or a member or manager of the institution. (2) A reference in Division 5 or Division 6 to an associated trust of a institution includes a trust in relation to which an order is in force under section 50J(5) (in relation to any abuse claim against the institution). 50C—When persons are associated with institution (1) For the purposes of this Part, the persons associated with an institution include—		(b)		
 institution includes a trust in relation to which an order is in force under section 50J(5) (in relation to any abuse claim against the institution). 50C—When persons are associated with institution (1) For the purposes of this Part, the persons associated with an institution include— (a) an officer, office holder, representative, leader, owner, employee, agent, volunteer or contractor of the institution and (b) for an institution that is a religious organisation—a min of religion, religious leader or member of the personnel the organisation; and 35 (c) if the institution has delegated the care, supervision, core 	20	(c)	informa instruct	al obligation to act, according to the directions, ions or wishes of the institution or a member or
 (1) For the purposes of this Part, the persons associated with an institution include— (a) an officer, office holder, representative, leader, owner, employee, agent, volunteer or contractor of the institution and (b) for an institution that is a religious organisation—a min of religion, religious leader or member of the personnel the organisation; and 35 (c) if the institution has delegated the care, supervision, core 		instituti under se	on includ ection 50	des a trust in relation to which an order is in force
 institution include— (a) an officer, office holder, representative, leader, owner, employee, agent, volunteer or contractor of the institution and (b) for an institution that is a religious organisation—a min of religion, religious leader or member of the personnel the organisation; and 35 (c) if the institution has delegated the care, supervision, correct or the institution include— (a) an officer, office holder, representative, leader, owner, employee, agent, volunteer or contractor of the institution and 	50C—	When	persons	are associated with institution
 30 employee, agent, volunteer or contractor of the institution and (b) for an institution that is a religious organisation—a minion of religion, religious leader or member of the personnel the organisation; and 35 (c) if the institution has delegated the care, supervision, corr 	(1)		- -	
 of religion, religious leader or member of the personnel the organisation; and 35 (c) if the institution has delegated the care, supervision, corr 	30	(a)	employ	-
		(b)	of religi	ion, religious leader or member of the personnel of
	35	(c)		stitution has delegated the care, supervision, control prity over a child to another entity (the <i>delegate</i>)—
(i) if the delegate is an individual—the delegate; a			(i)	if the delegate is an individual—the delegate; and
 (ii) a person who would be a person mentioned in paragraph (a) or (b) if the delegate were the delegating institution; and 	40		(ii)	paragraph (a) or (b) if the delegate were the

- (d) a designated carer (other than a designated carer who is the parent or guardian of the child (within the meaning of the *Children and Young People (Safety) Act 2017)*); and
- (e) a person, or person of a class, prescribed by regulation.
- (2) A person is not associated with an institution only because the person is associated with an entity that is funded or regulated by the institution.

50D—Application of Part

- (1) This Part, other than Division 2 and Division 3, applies in relation to a cause of action whether it arose before or after the commencement of this Part.
- (2) This Part binds the Crown not only in right of South Australia but also, so far as the legislative power of the Parliament permits, the Crown in all its other capacities.

Division 2—Duty of institutions to prevent child abuse

50E—Duty to prevent child abuse

- (1) An institution has a duty to take all reasonable steps to prevent the abuse of a child by a person associated with the institution while the child is under the care, supervision, control or authority of the institution.
- (2) Subsection (1) does not apply to abuse of a child by a person associated with an institution in circumstances wholly unrelated to that person's association with the institution.
- (3) If an institution has delegated, by means of contract or otherwise, the care, supervision, control or authority over a child to whom the claim relates to another institution, subsection (1) does not apply to abuse of the child by a person associated with the delegate institution in circumstances wholly unrelated to that person's association with the delegator institution or the delegate institution.

50F—Proof of whether duty was breached

- (1) This section applies if a person associated with an institution abuses a child while the child is under the care, supervision, control or authority of the institution.
- (2) The institution is taken to have breached its duty under section 50E unless the institution proves it took all reasonable steps to prevent the abuse.
- (3) In deciding whether the institution took all reasonable steps to prevent the abuse, the matters that are relevant include—
 - (a) the nature of the institution; and
 - (b) the resources that were reasonably available to the institution; and

10

5

15

20

25

30

35

		(c)	the relationship between the institution and the child; and
		(d)	the position in which the institution placed the person in relation to the child, including the extent to which the position gave the person—
5			(i) authority, power or control over the child; or
			(ii) an ability to achieve intimacy with the child or gain the child's trust; and
		(e)	the probability that the abuse would occur if precautions against a risk of abuse were not taken; and
10		(f)	the burden of taking precautions to avoid the risk of abuse; and
		(g)	the social utility of the activity that creates the risk of abuse; and
15		(h)	whether the institution complied with any applicable standard (however described) in respect of child safety; and
		(i)	any matter prescribed by the regulations; and
		(j)	any other matter a court considers relevant.
	Divisi	on 3—	-Vicarious liability of institutions
20		-Institu mploye	itions vicariously liable for abuse of child by ee
	(1)		stitution is vicariously liable for abuse of a child by an yee of the institution if—
25		(a)	the apparent performance by the employee of a role in which the institution placed the employee supplies the occasion for the abuse of the child by the employee; and
		(b)	the employee takes advantage of that occasion to abuse the child; and
		(c)	the abuse occurred while the child was under the care, supervision, control or authority of the institution.
30	(2)	in which for the institut	ermining if the apparent performance by the employee of a role ch the institution placed the employee supplied the occasion e abuse of a child, a court is to take into account whether the tion placed the employee in a position in which the employee or more of the following:
35		(a)	authority, power or control over the child;
		(b)	the trust of the child;
		(c)	the ability to achieve intimacy with the child.
	(3)		ection does not affect, and is in addition to, the common law as ies with respect to vicarious liability.

Division 4—Liability of particular institutions and office holders

50H—Liability of incorporated institution that was unincorporated at time of abuse

5	(1)	This see	ction app	lies if—
		(a)	associat the claim	n (the <i>claimant</i>) suffered abuse as a child by a person ted with an institution (the <i>associated person</i>) while mant was under the care, supervision, control or by of the institution; and
10		(b)	the claim	mant has or had a cause of action against—
15			(i)	a person (the <i>former office holder</i>) who held an office of authority in the institution (the <i>relevant</i> <i>office</i>) when the cause of action accrued, founded on the former office holder's responsibility for the institution or for the associated person; or
			(ii)	the institution, in accordance with section 50J; and
		(c)		itution was an unincorporated body when the cause n accrued; and
		(d)	the insti	itution is an incorporated body; and
20		(e)	—	
25			(i)	if the cause of action is against the former office holder—the claimant is able to maintain proceedings on the cause of action, or would be able to maintain proceedings on the cause of action if the former office holder still held the relevant office; or
30			(ii)	if the cause of action is against the institution—the claimant is able to maintain proceedings on the cause of action, or would be able to maintain proceedings on the cause of action if the institution was still an unincorporated body.
	(2)	-	-	r the claimant's cause of action may be commenced ainst the institution.
35	(3)	continu		pply for the purposes of a proceeding commenced or subsection (2) if the cause of action is against the lder:
		(a)	had in r	bility that the former office holder has or would have relation to the cause of action is taken to be a liability institution;
40		(b)	-	g done by the former office holder is taken to have one by the institution;

 (c) a duty or obligation that the former office holder woul had in relation to the proceeding is a duty or obligation the institution; (d) the institution may rely on any defence or immunity the would have been available to the former office holder defendant in the proceeding; (e) any right of the former office holder to be indemnified. 	n of aat as a nages
5 would have been available to the former office holder defendant in the proceeding;	as a nages
(e) any right of the former office holder to be indemnified	nages
 (c) any right of the former office holder to be indefinitive (including under an insurance policy) in respect of dar awarded in an abuse claim extends to, and indemnifies institution. 	
50I—Liability of current office holder of unincorporated institution	
(1) This section applies if—	
 (a) a person (the <i>claimant</i>) suffered abuse as a child by a associated with an institution (the <i>associated person</i>) the claimant was under the care, supervision, control of authority of the institution; and 	while
 (b) the claimant has or had a cause of action against a performer office holder) who held an office of author the institution (the <i>relevant office</i>) when the cause of a accrued, founded on the former office holder's response for the institution or for the associated person; and 	rity in action
(c) the institution was an unincorporated body when the c of action accrued; and	ause
25 (d) the institution is an unincorporated body; and	
(e) the former office holder no longer holds the relevant o and	ffice;
 (f) the claimant would be able to maintain an action on the cause of action if the former office holder still held the relevant office. 	
 A proceeding for the claimant's cause of action may be comme or continued against the current holder of the relevant office (th <i>current office holder</i>) in the name of the office. 	
(3) The following apply for the purposes of a proceeding comment35 continued under subsection (2):	ed or
 (a) any liability that the former office holder has or would had in relation to the cause of action is taken to be a line of the current office holder; 	
 (b) anything done by the former office holder is taken to h been done by the current office holder; 	ave
(c) a duty or obligation that the former office holder woul had in relation to the proceeding is a duty or obligation the current office holder;	

		(d)	immun	rent office holder may rely on any defence or ity that would have been available to the former holder as a defendant in the proceeding;
5		(e)	(includ awarde	ht of the former office holder to be indemnified ing under an insurance policy) in respect of damages d in an abuse claim extends to, and indemnifies, the office holder.
			C	unincorporated institution and nomination defendant
10	(1)		ction app porated	blies in relation to an institution that is an body.
	(2)	A proce	-	or an abuse claim may be commenced against the
15	(3)			aim must be given to the head of the institution in any requirements prescribed by the regulations.
	(4)	be the a		nay nominate a person, with the person's consent, to the defendant for the purposes of an abuse claim tution.
20	(5)			by the claimant, a court may order that the trustee of a ution's nominee if the court is satisfied—
		(a)		t is, or used to be, an associated trust of the ion; and
25		(b)	institut associa applied	ust that is no longer an associated trust of the ion—a reason for causing the trust to cease to be an ted trust was to try to avoid trust property being to satisfy a liability that may be found under a n on an abuse claim; and
		(c)	the ord	er would be appropriate.
	(6)	Subsec	tion (5) a	applies if—
30		(a)		120 days have passed since a proceeding for an laim was commenced against the institution; and
		(b)	either-	-
			(i)	there is no nominee for the institution; or
35			(ii)	a court is satisfied the institution's nominee does not have sufficient assets to satisfy a liability that may be found under a decision on the abuse claim.
	(7)	A cour	t may—	
		(a)		ne institution to do the following within 28 days or er period the court considers appropriate:
40			(i)	identify to the court any trusts that are, or used to be, associated trusts of the institution;

		(ii)	provide particular information about the financial capacity of the trusts; and
	(b)		ny other orders, and give the directions, it considers riate for the purposes of establishing—
5		(i)	whether a trust is, or used to be, an associated trust of the institution; or
		(ii)	the financial capacity of a trust mentioned in subparagraph (i); or
10		(iii)	whether a nominee of the institution has sufficient assets to satisfy a liability that may be found under a decision on the abuse claim; or
		(iv)	whether it would be appropriate to make an order in relation to a trustee under subsection (5).
	50K—Procee	ding ag	gainst nominee of unincorporated institution
15	deed), t	•	t or other law or instrument (including any trust wing apply if, under section 50J, there is a nominee n:
	(a)	-	eding for an abuse claim may be commenced or led against the nominee;
20	(b)	•	bility of the institution under the court's decision on se claim is incurred by the nominee;
	(c)	•	g done by the institution is taken to have been done nominee;
25	(d)	•	or obligation of the institution in relation to the ling is a duty or obligation of the nominee;
	(e)	and a co	itution must continue to participate in the proceeding ourt may make an order or give a direction relating to itution as if it were a person;
30	(f)		may make a substantive finding in the proceeding the institution as if it were a person;
	(g)	would l	ninee may rely on any defence or immunity that be available to the institution as a defendant in the ding if the institution were a person;
35	(h)	under a	ht of the institution to be indemnified (including in insurance policy) in respect of damages awarded in se claim extends to, and indemnifies, the nominee;
	(i)		is more than 1 nominee, the nominees must file a lefence and proceed as a single defendant.

Division 5—Satisfaction of liability

50L—Assets available to satisfy liability of institution

- (1) This section applies if an institution has a liability under a judgment in, or settlement of, an abuse claim.
- (2) The institution may satisfy the liability out of the assets of the institution and the assets of an associated trust of the institution.

50M—Assets available to satisfy liability of nominee

- (1) This section applies if an institution's nominee has a liability under a judgment in, or settlement of, an abuse claim.
- (2) If the nominee is the trustee of an associated trust of the institution, the nominee may satisfy the liability out of the assets of the trust and the assets of the institution.
- (3) Otherwise, the nominee may satisfy the liability out of its assets and the assets of the institution.

50N—Assets available to satisfy liability of current office holder

- (1) This section applies if, under section 50I(3), a current office holder has a liability under a judgment in, or settlement of, an abuse claim.
- (2) The current office holder is not personally liable but may satisfy the liability out of the assets of the institution and the assets of an associated trust of the institution.

500—Satisfaction of liability by trustee of associated trust

- This section applies in relation to a liability that, under section 50L, 50M or 50N, may be satisfied out of the assets of an associated trust of an institution.
- (2) The trustee of the associated trust may pay an amount in satisfaction of the liability and, for that purpose, may realise assets of the trust.
- (3) The satisfaction of the liability is a proper expense for which the trustee may be indemnified out of the trust property, irrespective of any limitation on any right of indemnity the trustee may have.
- (4) The liability of the trustee of the associated trust as the institution's nominee is limited to the value of the trust property.
- (5) The trustee is not liable for a breach of trust only because of doing anything authorised by this section.

50P—References to liability

A reference in this Division to a liability under a judgment in, or settlement of, an abuse claim includes any costs associated with a proceeding for the claim.

5

10

15

20

25

30

Division 6—Miscellaneous

50Q—Entities may act despite other laws and duties

An institution, an institution's nominee, a current office holder or the trustee of an associated trust of an institution may act under Division 5, and the trustee of an associated trust of an institution may consent to being the institution's nominee, despite—

- (a) another law; or
- (b) the terms of the associated trust (including a trust for a charitable purpose); or
- (c) a duty, whether as the current holder of an office in the institution or as trustee or otherwise.

50R—Continuity of institutions

- (1) For the purposes of Division 4, it is sufficient that an institution (the *current institution*) is substantially the same as it was at the time when the cause of action accrued (the *relevant time*).
- (2) Without limiting the generality of subsection (1), the current institution is substantially the same as it was at the relevant time if the class or type of member and the primary purposes or work of the current institution are substantially the same as they were at the relevant time.
- (3) Subsections (1) and (2) have effect regardless of whether, after the relevant time—
 - (a) the name of the institution changed; or
 - (b) the organisational structure of the institution changed; or
 - (c) the institution became incorporated; or
 - (d) the geographic area in which the members of the institution carried out the purposes or work of the institution changed.
- (4) If there is no institution that is the same institution, or substantially the same institution, as the institution at the relevant time (the *old institution*), a relevant successor of the old institution is taken to be the same institution as the old institution.
- (5) For the purposes of subsection (4), an institution (also the *current institution*) is a relevant successor of the old institution if—
 - (a) all or part of the old institution merged into the current institution; or
 - (b) all or part of the old institution merged with 1 or more other entities to form the current institution; or
 - (c) the current institution is the remainder of the old institution after part of the old institution ceased to be part of the old institution; or

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

5		(d)	over tin instituti to each	e in which there is at least 1 institution interposed, ne, between the old institution and the current fon—at least 1 of the following circumstances applies link in the chain between the old institution and the institution:
			(i)	all or part of an earlier institution merged into another institution;
			(ii)	all or part of an earlier institution merged with 1 or more other entities to form another institution;
10			(iii)	an institution is the remainder of an earlier institution after part of the earlier institution ceased to be part of the earlier institution;
			(iv)	an institution as it is at a particular time is substantially the same as it was at an earlier time.
15	(6)			nstitution (a <i>current institution</i>) is a relevant old institution the following applies:
20		(a)	abuse o instituti	rrent institution is jointly and severally liable for the f a child by a person associated with the old on while the child was under the care, supervision, or authority of the old institution;
		(b)	instituti	nt institution which is a relevant successor of the old on may recover contribution from another current on which is also a relevant successor of the old on;
25		(c)	an actio	on for contribution may be brought—
			(i)	by way of third party proceedings, or proceedings between the parties, in an action in which damages are sought from the institution entitled to contribution; or
30			(ii)	by way of a separate action brought against the institution from which contribution is sought;
35		(d)	instituti	air and equitable to do so, a court may exempt an on from liability to make contribution or order that tribution to be recovered is to amount to a complete ity;
		(e)	an actio	on for contribution may be brought even though—
			(i)	judgment in an action in which damages are sought for the relevant abuse has not yet been given; or
40			(ii)	the person who suffered the abuse has released the institution from which contribution is sought from liability or has obtained judgment against that institution; or

			(iii)	suffered against	that would be required if the person who I the abuse were to obtain a judgment the institution from which contribution is has not been given; or
5			(iv)	abuse c	e within which the person who suffered the ould have commenced an action against the atory has expired;
		(f)	despite	paragrap	h (e)—
10			(i)	instituti the insti indemn	stitution is liable to indemnify another on against that other institution's liability, itution is (to the extent of the liability to ify) not entitled to contribution from the stitution under this section; and
15			(ii)	operates	ectual limitation or exclusion of liability s to limit or exclude an entitlement to ation under this section if—
				(A)	it arises from a contract made before the occurrence of the act or omission that gave rise to the liability; and
20 25				(B)	it would, assuming the institution who suffered primary harm had brought an action for damages against the institution from which contribution is sought, have limited or excluded that institution's right to recover damages;
		(g)		•	ermine any action for contribution according ad equitable in all of the circumstances.
	(7)	In this	section-	-	
30		contrib	ution und	ler this se	nstitution (or institutions) seeking ection and the institution (or institutions) is sought.
5	0S—(Contin	uity of c	offices	
	(1)	This se	ction app	lies for t	he purposes of section 50I.
35	(2)				ice in the institution is substantially the relevant cause of action accrued.
	(3)	substar section	ntially the	e same as), the cur	ce in the institution that is the same or the relevant office mentioned in rent head of the institution is taken to be the

50T—Corporations Act displacement	50T—	-Corporations	Act	disp	lacement
-----------------------------------	------	---------------	-----	------	----------

Sections 50K to 50Q are declared to be Corporations legislation displacement provisions for the purposes of section 5G of the *Corporations Act 2001* of the Commonwealth in relation to the Corporations legislation generally.

50U—Proceedings despite previous judgment

- (1) Subject to subsection (2), proceedings on a cause of action may be commenced against a person or institution in accordance with this Part even though a judgment was given in relation to the cause of action before the commencement of this Part on the ground that the person or institution was not an appropriate defendant.
- (2) Proceedings on a cause of action in circumstances contemplated by subsection (1) may only be commenced if a court, being satisfied that it is just and reasonable to do so, grants leave for the action to be commenced.
- (3) In granting leave under subsection (2) for proceedings on a cause of action to be commenced, a court may make any order the court considers to be necessary for the proceedings to proceed or otherwise appropriate in the circumstances.

Part 7B—Child abuse—setting aside settlements

50V—Meaning of affected agreement

- (1) In this Part, *affected agreement* means an agreement—
 - (a) that prevents the commencement or maintenance of proceedings on a cause of action to which section 3A of the *Limitation of Actions Act 1936* applies if—
 - (i) the agreement occurred before the commencement of that section; and
 - (ii) at the time of the agreement, a limitation period applying to the cause of action had expired; or
 - (b) that prevents the commencement or maintenance of proceedings on a cause of action in respect of an abuse claim (within the meaning of Part 7A) if—
 - (i) the agreement occurred before the commencement of Part 7A; and
 - (ii) at the time of the agreement, proceedings on the cause of action could not be commenced or maintained against a person or institution that would have been liable under Part 7A for child abuse had the Part been in force.
- (2) For the purposes of this section, a limitation period is taken to have expired even if it were possible at the time to seek the leave of a court to extend the period.

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

50W—Court may set aside affected agreement

5	(1)	prevented of action	from o to whic or in res	<i>plicant</i>) who, because of an affected agreement, is commencing or maintaining proceedings on a cause ch section 3A of the <i>Limitation of Actions Act 1936</i> pect of an abuse claim (within the meaning of
				nce proceedings on the cause of action in a court fficient jurisdiction to hear the cause of action; and
		(b) a	apply to	the court to set aside the affected agreement.
10	(2)	The cour reasonab	•	et aside an affected agreement if it is just and so.
	(3)		•	onsider the following in making its decision to set d agreement:
15		1	oarriers	nt to which the existence of the limitation period or to identifying an appropriate defendant materially uted to the applicant's decision to enter into the ent;
		. ,		umstances in which the agreement was negotiated ered into, including—
20			(i)	whether negotiations were affected by an imbalance of power; and
			(ii)	whether the applicant was legally represented; and
			(iii)	whether the defendant (or other parties) engaged in unfair or oppressive conduct;
25		(c) a	any oth	er matter the court considers relevant.
30	(4)	being add is of a co with an a	luced in mmuni ttempt	of the <i>Evidence Act 1929</i> does not prevent evidence in proceedings under this section, even if the evidence cation made, or a document prepared, in connection to negotiate a settlement of the dispute to which the ent relates.
	(5)			des to set aside an affected agreement it may also set following that gives effect to the agreement:
		(a) a	a contra	ct, deed or other agreement;
		(b) a	an orde	r or judgment of the court or of a lower court.
35	(6)	However	, the co	urt must not set aside the following:
		2 2	acceptar and an a	of release signed by or on behalf of the applicant in nce of an offer under the National Redress Scheme agreement relating to a relevant prior payment that n taken into account in the offer;
40		(b) a	a contra	ct of insurance.

(7) In this section—

National Redress Scheme means the National Redress Scheme for Institutional Child Sexual Abuse established under the *National Redress Scheme for Institutional Child Sexual Abuse Act 2018* of the Commonwealth.

50X—Effect of setting aside affected agreement

- (1) An affected agreement and anything else set aside under this Part is void.
- (2) An amount paid or other consideration given under the affected agreement—
 - (a) is not recoverable despite the agreement being void; and
 - (b) may be taken into account by the court in determining damages in proceedings for a cause of action to which the affected agreement related.